Spokane Transit Authority
1230 West Boone Avenue
Spokane, WA 99201-2686
(509) 325-6000

BOARD OPERATIONS COMMITTEE MEETING

Wednesday, March 8, 2023
1:30 p.m.—=3:00 p.m.

Via Virtual Conference
w/In Person Public Viewing Option
Spokane Transit Authority, 1230 W. Boone Avenue, Spokane, WA

Committee Members: Click here to join the meeting

General Public: Click here to join the meeting

Audio Conference: Call the number below and enter the access code.

P W E

8.
9.

+1-408-418-9388 | Access code: 2486 485 7919 | Password: 2023

AGENDA
Call to Order and Roll Call
Approve Committee Agenda (Kinnear)
Chair’'s Comments (Kinnear) (5 minutes)
Committee Action/Discussion (5 minutes)
A. Minutes of the February 8, 2023, Committee Meeting — Corrections/Approval
Committee Action/Discussion (5 minutes)

A. Board Consent Agenda

i. Cheney Line Corridor Improvements and West Plains Transit Center Retrofit
(Bay 4) — Temporary Construction Easements (Otterstrom)

Committee Chair Reports (10 minutes)

A. Al French, Planning & Development

B. Pamela Haley, Performance Monitoring & External Relations

Board Development (20 minutes)

A. Draft Agenda Board Retreat (Meyer)

B. Update Rules of Procedure (Meyer)

Board of Directors Draft March 16, 2023, Meeting Agenda — Corrections/Approval (Meyer) (5 minutes)
Board Operations Committee Draft April 12, 2023, Meeting Agenda — Information (Meyer) (5 minutes)

10. CEO Report (15 minutes)

11. New Business
12. Adjourn
Next Committee Meeting: Wednesday, April 12, 2023, at 1:30 p.m. via WebEx

Agendas of regular Committee and Board meetings are posted the Friday afternoon preceding each meeting at the STA’s
website: www.spokanetransit.com. Discussions concerning matters to be brought to the Board are held in Committee
meetings. The public is welcome to attend and participate. Spokane Transit assures nondiscrimination in accordance with
Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and the Americans with Disabilities Act. For more information, see
www.spokanetransit.com. Upon request, alternative formats of this information will be produced for people who are

disabled. The meeting facility is accessible for people using wheelchairs. For other accommodations, please call 325-6094

(TTY Relay 711) at least forty-eight (48) hours in advance.


http://www.spokanetransit.com/
http://www.spokanetransit.com/
https://spokanetransit.webex.com/spokanetransit/onstage/g.php?MTID=e1b3984c2566c10c464141254c6f9c089
https://spokanetransit.webex.com/spokanetransit/onstage/g.php?MTID=eb715e2cff1e882701126c3bccd69fa0f

SPOKANE TRANSIT AUTHORITY

BOARD OPERATIONS COMMITTEE MEETING

March 8, 2023

AGENDA ITEM 2 : APPROVE COMMITTEE AGENDA
REFERRAL COMMITTEE: n/a
SUBMITTED BY: Lori Kinnear, Committee Chair

SUMMARY: At this time, the Board Operations Committee will review the meeting agenda.

RECOMMENDATION TO COMMITTEE: Approve agenda.




SPOKANE TRANSIT AUTHORITY

BOARD OPERATIONS COMMITTEE MEETING

March 8, 2023

AGENDA ITEM 3 : BOARD OPERATIONS COMMITTEE CHAIR’S COMMENTS
REFERRAL COMMITTEE: n/a
SUBMITTED BY: Lori Kinnear, Committee Chair

SUMMARY: At this time, the Committee Chair will have an opportunity to comment on various topics of
interest regarding Spokane Transit.

RECOMMENDATION TO COMMITTEE: Information only.




SPOKANE TRANSIT AUTHORITY

BOARD OPERATIONS COMMITTEE MEETING

March 8, 2023

AGENDA ITEM 4A : MINUTES OF THE FEBRUARY 8, 2023, COMMITTEE MEETING —
CORRECTIONS AND/OR APPROVAL

REFERRAL COMMITTEE: n/a

SUBMITTED BY: Amie Blain, Executive Assistant to the Chief Financial Officer

SUMMARY: The February 8, 2023, meeting minutes are attached for your information and correction
and/or approval.

RECOMMENDATION TO COMMITTEE: Corrections and/or approval.




Spokane Transit Authority

1230 West Boone Avenue
Spokane, Washington 99201-2686
(509) 325-6000

BOARD OPERATIONS COMMITTEE MEETING

Draft Minutes of the February 8, 2023, Meeting

Via Webex Video Conference

MEMBERS PRESENT

Lori Kinnear, City of Spokane, Chair

Al French, Spokane County, Chair Pro Tem,
Planning & Development Committee Chair
Pamela Haley, City of Spokane Valley
Performance Monitoring & External
Relations Committee Chair

E. Susan Meyer, Chief Executive Officer,
Ex Officio

MEMBERS ABSENT

Dan Dunne, City of Liberty Lake

STAFF PRESENT

Brandon Rapez-Betty, Chief Operations Officer
Carly Cortright, Chief Communications and
Customer Service Officer

Karl Otterstrom, Chief Planning and
Development Officer

Monique Liard, Chief Financial Officer

Nancy Williams, Chief Human Resources Officer
Dana Infalt, Clerk of the Authority

Amie Blain, Executive Assistant to the Chief
Financial Officer

PROVIDING LEGAL COUNSEL

Megan Clark, Etter, McMahon, Lamberson,
Van Wert & Oreskovich, P.C.

STAFF ABSENT

None

1. CALLTO ORDER AND ROLL CALL

Chair Kinnear called the meeting to order at 1:30 p.m. and conducted roll call.

2. APPROVE COMMITTEE AGENDA

This item was not reviewed.

3. CHAIR’'S COMMENTS

Chair Kinnear suggested developing a training process to help transition new STA Board Members
into their roles. Mr. French shared that Spokane County has scheduled a retreat for its new
Commissioners, and that a less formal Board retreat for STA Board Members could be beneficial.
Ms. Haley supported the idea of a retreat. Ms. Meyer recommended updating the Board’s Rules of
Procedure, as they were last updated in 1993, and she offered to bring a draft to the Board through
the Board Operations Committee.



4. COMMITTEE ACTION

A. January 11, 2023, Committee Minutes

Mr. French moved to approve the January 11, 2023, Committee meeting minutes as submitted,
Ms. Haley seconded, and the motion passed unanimously.

5. COMMITTEE CHAIR REPORTS

A. Al French, Chair, Planning & Development (P&D)

Mr. French noted that Council Member Stratton, City of Spokane, chaired the meeting as he
participated via phone and had to leave early. Mr. Otterstrom shared the items presented at the
Planning and Development Committee meeting on February 1, 2023.

B. Pam Haley, Chair, Performance Monitoring & External Relations (PMER)

Ms. Haley shared the items presented at the Performance Monitoring & External Relations
Committee meeting on February 1, 2023.

6. BOARD OF DIRECTORS AGENDA FEBRUARY 16, 2023

Ms. Haley moved to approve the Board of Directors agenda as presented, Mr. French seconded,
and the motion passed unanimously.

7. BOARD OPERATIONS COMMITTEE DRAFT AGENDA MARCH 8, 2023

There were no questions or comments.

Mr. French moved to approve the Board Operations Committee draft agenda as presented, Ms.
Haley seconded, and the motion passed unanimously.

8. CEO REPORT

Ms. Meyer shared details regarding the January 2023 voter-approved Sales Tax revenues, and the
City Line temporary service span and frequency comparisons for July 2023. Ms. Meyer noted that
STA will be requesting a waiver from the Federal Transit Administration regarding the temporary
service frequencies. Mr. French shared hiring for Coach Operators has been, and still is a challenge,
and he supports the efforts of Ms. Meyer and STA. He noted community feedback regarding service
times established the desire for evening and weekend service. Ms. Haley agreed with Mr. French’s
sentiments and thanked STA staff their hard work. Chair Kinnear shared her excitement for the City
Line launch, and she commended STA for addressing the challenges. She recommended continuing
to communicate with the Board Members to ensure they are aware of the progress and updates.

9. NEW BUSINESS

Chair Kinnear shared a positive experience by a City of Spokane employee who lost a cell phone on
an STA bus. The Coach Operator retrieved the cell phone, and it was returned to her. She was
impressed and grateful, and she asked that Chair Kinnear share this experience and how STA staff go
above and beyond for their customers. Mr. French shared that Spokane County is nearing
completion of its contract renewal with STA for employee bus passes.

Board Operations Committee Meeting Minutes Page | 2
February 8, 2023



10. ADJOURN

With no further business to come before the Committee, Chair Kinnear adjourned the meeting at
2:05 p.m.

Respectfully submitted,
Hmie Blacn

Amie Blain
Executive Assistant to the Chief Financial Officer

Board Operations Committee Meeting Minutes Page | 3
February 8, 2023



SPOKANE TRANSIT AUTHORITY

BOARD OPERATIONS COMMITTEE MEETING

March 8, 2023

AGENDA ITEM 5A| : CHENEY LINE CORRIDOR IMPROVEMENTS AND WEST PLAINS TRANSIT
CENTER RETROFIT (BAY 4) - TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENTS

REFERRAL COMMITTEE: n/a

SUBMITTED BY: Karl Otterstrom, Planning & Development Officer
Jeff Hall, Capital Projects Manager

SUMMARY: The Cheney Line Corridor Improvement and West Plains Transit Center Retrofit (Bay 4)
project will require three (3) temporary construction easements (TCE) for the construction of bus stops
and street improvements in the City of Cheney. STA has been in contact with the respective property
owners regarding these easements and all are willing partners. These TCEs are summarized in the table
below:

TCE# PARCEL # ADDRESS DESCRIPTION OWNER TCE VALUE
A 13121.0070 2816 & 2710 1% 14’ x 158’ Sierra $1,128
13121.0071 Ave. Cheney, WA Developments, LLC

B 13124.5307 445 N 6" St. 4’ x42.35’ Buxton, D.C. & P.O. $100
Cheney, WA

C 13124.5809 460 N 5% St. 4’ x 43.65’ St. Rose of Lima $37
Cheney, WA Catholic Parish

TOTAL: $1,265

These TCEs are located along the City rights-of-way and allow for removal of existing sidewalk and bus
stop pads in a state of disrepair and construction of sidewalk and landscape improvements. The
easement areas consist of drainage swales and landscaping. The property values have been determined
by appraisals performed, with a total value of $1,265. Staff are recommending the Board authorize the
CEO to negotiate and acquire all TCEs listed for a total not-to-exceed value of $2,000. TCE expenditures
will be attributed to the Cheney Line project budget (CIP#764).

RECOMMENDATION TO COMMITTEE: Recommend the Board approve, by motion, the acquisition of
temporary construction easements on parcel nos. 13121.0070, 13121.0071, 13124.5307, and

13124.5809 for an amount not-to-exceed $2,000 and authorize the CEO to negotiate each temporary
construction easement and execute all necessary documents on behalf of Spokane Transit Authority.




SPOKANE TRANSIT AUTHORITY

BOARD OPERATIONS COMMITTEE MEETING

March 8, 2023

AGENDA ITEM 6A : PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE CHAIR REPORT
REFERRAL COMMITTEE: n/a
SUBMITTED BY: Al French, Chair, Planning & Development

SUMMARY: At this time, the Committee Chair will review the March 1, 2023, and Draft April 5, 2023,
committee meeting agendas as part of the report. Agendas are attached.

RECOMMENDATION TO COMMITTEE: For information and discussion.




Spokane Transit Authority
1230 West Boone Avenue
Spokane, WA 99201-2686
(509) 325-6000

PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE MEETING
Wednesday, March 1, 2023
10:00 a.m.—-11:30 a.m.

Committee Meeting is via Virtual Conference
w/In Person Public Viewing Option
Spokane Transit Authority, 1230 W. Boone Avenue, Spokane, WA

Committee Members: Committee Members — Click Here to Join Virtually

General Public: Guests — Click Here to Join Virtually

Audio Conference: Call the number below and enter the access code.
+1-408-418-9388 | Access code: 2487 351 2836 | Password: 2023

AGENDA
Call to Order and Roll Call
Committee Chair Report (5 minutes)
Committee Action (5 minutes)
A. Minutes of the February 1, 2023, Committee Meeting -- Corrections/Approval
B. Connect 2035 Strategic Plan — Phase 2: Scope of Work (Otterstrom)
4. Committee Action (15 minutes)
A. Board Consent Agenda
1. 2023 Title VI Program Adoption (Resolution) (Otterstrom)
B. Board Discussion Agenda -- none

5. Reports to Committee (30 minutes)

A. 2024-2029 Transit Development Plan: Develop Mid-Range Planning Guidance (Otterstrom)
B. Division Street Bus Rapid Transit: Project Update (Otterstrom)

C. Draft SRTC 2024-2025 Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP) (Otterstrom)

CEO Report (E. Susan Meyer) (15 minutes)

Committee Information

Review April 5, 2023, Committee Meeting Agenda

v N

New Business
10. Committee Members’ Expressions (5 minutes)
11. Adjourn

Next Committee Meeting: Wednesday, April 5, 2023, at 10:00 a.m. via Webex

Agendas of regular Committee and Board meetings are posted the Friday afternoon preceding each meeting at the
STA’s website: www.spokanetransit.com. Discussions concerning matters to be brought to the Board are held in
Committee meetings. The public is welcome to attend and participate. Spokane Transit assures nondiscrimination in
accordance with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and the Americans with Disabilities Act. For more information,
see www.spokanetransit.com. Upon request, alternative formats of this information will be produced for people who
are disabled. The meeting facility is accessible for people using wheelchairs. For other accommodations, please call
325-6094 (TTY Relay 711) at least forty-eight (48) hours in advance.



http://www.spokanetransit.com/
http://www.spokanetransit.com/
https://spokanetransit.webex.com/spokanetransit/onstage/g.php?MTID=e05101568e528f4d248d5661ecd07f2bb
https://spokanetransit.webex.com/spokanetransit/onstage/g.php?MTID=ec47c2f774766b019eaed333de3dae20d

Spokane Transit Authority
1230 West Boone Avenue
Spokane, WA 99201-2686
(509) 325-6000

PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE MEETING

Wednesday, April 5, 2023
10:00 a.m.—-11:30 a.m.

Committee Meeting is via Virtual Conference
w/In Person Public Viewing Option
Spokane Transit Authority, 1230 W. Boone Avenue, Spokane, WA

Committee Members: Insert Link here
General Public: Insert Link here

Audio Conference: Call the number below and enter the access code.
+1-408-418-9388 | Access code: xxxx xxx xxxx | Password: 2023

DRAFT AGENDA
Call to Order and Roll Call
Committee Chair Report (5 minutes)
Committee Action (5 minutes)
A. Minutes of the February 1, 2023, Committee Meeting -- Corrections/Approval
4. Committee Action
A. Board Consent Agenda (5 minutes)
1. Division Street Bus Rapid Transit Work Order #2 Approval (Otterstrom)
B. Board Discussion Agenda

5. Reports to Committee (20 minutes)

A. Division Street Bus Rapid Transit: Refined Locally Preferred Alternative (Otterstrom)
(Public Hearing at April Board meeting)

B. 2024-2029 Transit Development Plan: Planning Guidance (Otterstrom)

C. 2024-2029 Transit Development Plan: Financial Assumptions (Otterstrom)

CEO Report (E. Susan Meyer) (15 minutes)

Committee Information

Review April 5, 2023, Committee Meeting Agenda

v 0 N o

New Business
10. Committee Members’ Expressions (5 minutes)
11. Adjourn

Next Committee Meeting: Wednesday, April 5, 2023, at 10:00 a.m. via Webex

Agendas of regular Committee and Board meetings are posted the Friday afternoon preceding each meeting at the
STA’s website: www.spokanetransit.com. Discussions concerning matters to be brought to the Board are held in
Committee meetings. The public is welcome to attend and participate. Spokane Transit assures nondiscrimination in
accordance with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and the Americans with Disabilities Act. For more information,
see www.spokanetransit.com. Upon request, alternative formats of this information will be produced for people who
are disabled. The meeting facility is accessible for people using wheelchairs. For other accommodations, please call
325-6094 (TTY Relay 711) at least forty-eight (48) hours in advance.



http://www.spokanetransit.com/
http://www.spokanetransit.com/

SPOKANE TRANSIT AUTHORITY

BOARD OPERATIONS COMMITTEE MEETING

March 8, 2023

AGENDA ITEM 6B : PERFORMANCE MONITORING & EXTERNAL RELATIONS COMMITTEE
CHAIR REPORT

REFERRAL COMMITTEE: n/a

SUBMITTED BY: Pamela Haley, Chair, Performance Monitoring & External Relations

SUMMARY: At this time, the Committee Chair will review the March 1, 2023, and Draft April 5, 2023,
committee meeting agendas as part of the report. Agendas are attached.

RECOMMENDATION TO COMMITTEE: For information and discussion.




Spokane Transit Authority
1230 West Boone Avenue
Spokane, WA 99201-2686
(509) 325-6000

PERFORMANCE MONITORING & EXTERNAL RELATIONS COMMITTEE MEETING
March 1, 2023
1:30 p.m.—=3:00 p.m.

Committee Meeting is via Virtual Conference
w/In Person Viewing Option
Spokane Transit, 1230 W Boone Avenue, Spokane, WA

Committee Members: COMMITTEE MEMBER LINK
General Public: GENERAL PUBLIC LINK

Audio Conference: Call the number below and enter the access code.
+1-408-418-9388 | Access code: 2480 766 4058 | Password: 2023

UPDATED AGENDA
1. Call to Order and Roll Call
Committee Chair Report (5 minutes)
3. Committee Action (10 minutes)
A. Minutes of the February 1, 2023, Committee Meeting -- Corrections/Approval
B. Citizen Advisory Committee: Reappointment of Member to a Second Term (Cortright)
4. Committee Action (15 minutes)
A. Board Consent Agenda
1. July 2023 Service Revisions: Final Recommendation (Otterstrom)
2. Cheney Line Corridor Improvements and West Plains Transit Center Retrofit (Bay 4): Award of
Contract (Otterstrom)
3. 100% Rideshare Subsidy for Spokane Transit Employees (Rapez-Betty/Williams)
B. Board Discussion Agenda (none)
5. Reports to Committee (30 minutes)
A. 2022 Year-End Performance Measures (Rapez-Betty)
B. 2022 State Audit Timeline (Liard)
C. 2022 Unaudited Year-End Financial Report (Liard)
D. Community Access Pass (CAP) Program Report (Cortright)
6. Committee Discussion (15 minutes)
A. Student Fare Cards (E. Susan Meyer)
B. Fee for Connect Cards (E. Susan Meyer)
7. CEO Report (E. Susan Meyer) (15 minutes)
8. Committee Information (no discussion/staff available for questions)
A. January 2023 Operating Indicators (Rapez-Betty)
B. February 2023 Sales Tax Revenue (Liard)
C. January 2023 Financial Results Summary (Liard)
9. Review April 5,2023, Committee Meeting Agenda
10. New Business

N

Agendas of regular Committee and Board meetings are posted the Friday afternoon preceding each meeting at the STA’s website:
www.spokanetransit.com. Discussions concerning matters to be brought to the Board are held in Committee meetings. The public
is welcome to attend and participate. Spokane Transit assures nondiscrimination in accordance with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act
of 1964 and the Americans with Disabilities Act. For more information, see www.spokanetransit.com. Upon request, alternative
formats of this information will be produced for people who are disabled. The meeting facility is accessible for people using
wheelchairs. For other accommodations, please call 325-6094 (TTY Relay 711) at least forty-eight (48) hours in advance.



http://www.spokanetransit.com/
http://www.spokanetransit.com/
https://spokanetransit.webex.com/spokanetransit/onstage/g.php?MTID=e489e6d9a7ae91dfc65bce65896530d6e
https://spokanetransit.webex.com/spokanetransit/onstage/g.php?MTID=e9f0ac98b90c3a985fc6e15fa6e192fc2

Spokane Transit Authority
1230 West Boone Avenue
Spokane, WA 99201-2686
(509) 325-6000

PERFORMANCE MONITORING & EXTERNAL RELATIONS COMMITTEE MEETING
April 5, 2023
1:30 p.m.—=3:00 p.m.

Committee Meeting is via Virtual Conference
w/In Person Viewing Option
Spokane Transit, 1230 W Boone Avenue, Spokane, WA

Committee Members: INSERT COMMITTEE LINK HERE

General Public: INSERT GUEST AND ATTENDEE LINK HERE

Audio Conference: Call the number below and enter the access code.
+1-408-418-9388 | Access code: XXXX| Password: 2023

DRAFT AGENDA
1. Call to Order and Roll Call
Committee Chair Report (10 minutes)
3. Committee Action (15 minutes)
A. Minutes of the March 1, 2023, Committee Meeting -- Corrections/Approval
4. Committee Action (none)
A. Board Consent Agenda (none)
B. Board Discussion Agenda (none)
5. Reports to Committee (none)
6. Committee Discussion (15 minutes)
A. Student Fare Cards
7. CEO Report (E. Susan Meyer) (15 minutes)
8. Committee Information (no discussion/staff available for questions)
A. February 2023 Operating Indicators (Rapez-Betty)
B. March 2023 Sales Tax Revenue (Liard)
C. February 2023 Financial Results Summary (Liard)
D. May 2023 Service Change (Otterstrom)
9. Review May 3, 2023, Committee Meeting Agenda
10. New Business (5 minutes)
11. Committee Members’ Expressions (5 minutes)
12. Adjourn
13. Next Committee Meeting: Wednesday, May 3, 2023, at 1:30 p.m. via WebEx w/In Person Option

N

Agendas of regular Committee and Board meetings are posted the Friday afternoon preceding each meeting at the
STA’s website: www.spokanetransit.com. Discussions concerning matters to be brought to the Board are held in
Committee meetings. The public is welcome to attend and participate. Spokane Transit assures nondiscrimination in
accordance with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and the Americans with Disabilities Act. For more information,
see www.spokanetransit.com. Upon request, alternative formats of this information will be produced for people who
are disabled. The meeting facility is accessible for people using wheelchairs. For other accommodations, please call
325-6094 (TTY Relay 711) at least forty-eight (48) hours in advance.



http://www.spokanetransit.com/
http://www.spokanetransit.com/

SPOKANE TRANSIT AUTHORITY

BOARD OPERATIONS COMMITTEE MEETING

March 8, 2023

AGENDA ITEM 7A : DRAFT AGENDA BOARD RETREAT
REFERRAL COMMITTEE: n/a
SUBMITTED BY: E. Susan Meyer, Chief Executive Officer

SUMMARY: At this time, staff will present a Draft Board Retreat Agenda for committee review and
direction.

RECOMMENDATION TO COMMITTEE: For discussion.




SPOKANE TRANSIT AUTHORITY

BOARD OPERATIONS COMMITTEE MEETING

March 8, 2023

AGENDA ITEM 7B : UPDATE SPOKANE TRANSIT AUTHORITY RULES OF PROCEDURE
REFERRAL COMMITTEE: n/a
SUBMITTED BY: E. Susan Meyer, Chief Executive Officer

SUMMARY: The attached Spokane Transit Authority Rules of Procedure were last adopted by the Board
at the December 16, 1993, Board meeting.

At this time, staff will present proposed updates for the Committee’s review and discussion.

RECOMMENDATION TO COMMITTEE: Recommend the Board of Directors approve, by Resolution, the
proposed updates to the Spokane Transit Authority Rules of Procedure.

COMMITTEE ACTION:

RECOMMENDATION TO BOARD:

FINAL REVIEW FOR BOARD BY:

Division Head Chief Executive Officer Legal Counsel



Spokane Transit Authority
" 1280 West Boone Avenue
<, Spokane, WA::99201-2686
- 1609). 325-6000.

SPOKANE TRANSIT AUTHORITY

RULES OF PROCEDURE

et

[15310-0001/KA933150.019} ' o i1"1115/5:3 ‘

e




RESOLUTION NO. 456-93 . & ;

A RESOLUTION FOR THE PURPOSE OF EROVIDING FOR THE ADOPTION OF
"RULES OF PROCEDURE"; AND OTHER MATTERS PROPERLY RELATING THERETQ.

SPOKANE TRANSIT AUTHORITY
Spokane County, Washi_ngbgn

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE SPOKANE TRANSIT AUTHORITY as follows:

WHEREAS, the Spokane Transit Authority (STA) is a municipal corporation operating and
existing under and pursuant to the Constitution and Laws of the State of Washington, pursuant
to RCW Title 36, Chapter 57A, Public Transportation Benefit Area (PTBA); and

WHEREAS, STA is a legislative body of the Spokane County PTBA; and

WHEREAS, STA, by Resolution No. 225-84, adopted "Rules of Procedure" regarding
meetings, agenda, legislative hearings, adjudicative hearings, and general principles; .

NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved by the Board of Directors of STA as follows:
Section 1. The "Rules of Procedure” are hereby adopted. ‘

Section 2. The "Rules of ‘Procedurs” adopted by STA Resolution No. 225-84 are hersby
repealed in their entirety. ( ‘

Section 8. The "Rules of Procedure” shall be effective from the date of adoption.

Adopted by STA at a regular meeting thereof held on the 16th day of December, 1993,

ATTEST: ' SPOKANE TRANSIT AUTHORITY

JATS IS M B \!3_[ ALL --Lﬁ e ) /L M.qxﬁ_f/;;g_/
Debhie Leinan . dJoe Martella \GQ}\G.;r Pro Tewddo Ve
Clerk of the Authority _ Board Chairperson

Attorney for Spokane Transit Authority
y 7/

r

L.




CONTENTS
ARTICLE I ~ MEETINGS . vvvnvernnnns et ie e,

RULE 1.1 - PLACE AND TIME OF REGULAR MEETINGS........

RULE. 1.2 ADJOURNED MEETINGS. .. euvroiveenrnscnnnenns

RULE 1.3 SPECTAL MEETINGS. ... .oesssennnss. e,

" 'RULE 1.4 EXECUTIVE'SEséIoNs....}....{...;:...{T.L.[
RULE 1.5 MEETINGS NOT SUBJECT TO OPEN PUBLIC

; MEETINGS TAW. v v vvvneesrraneenens e eeeeanenaa iy

ARTICLE IT - CONDUCT OF BUSINESS...e..ccovvnsn. R

"RULE 2.1 AGENDA...trteunenrenrnnnennennan, e

RULE 2.2 AGENDA DATA. + v v e s ersssseteseeeeannsennn.

RULE 2.3 ORDER OF BUSINESS..te.cuneinereurioenonnn

RULE 2.4 PROCEDURE FOR BOARD ACTION.covvncarannaann

RULE 2.5 SPEAKING TO THE BOARD. . .sviviveonvnnennn.

RULE 2.6 THE CHATRPERSON........... T e

RULE 2.7 VOTING. 11 uvsnesevenresennssensenenns SO

RULE 2.8 AMENDMENT, SUSPENSION OF RULES............

RULE 2.9 COMMITTEES....... e e :
RULE 2,10 AUTHORITY TO SIGN RESOLUTIONS............. ‘

" ARTICLE III ~ LEGISLATIVE HEARINGS...u.ueunenenennnnnnn :
RULE 3.1 INITIATION OF HEARINGS......... e, .

RULE 3.2 WITHDRAWAL AND RECONSIDERATION..... e )
RULE 3.3 FORMAL RESOLUTIONS.....0vvuveonss Ceveese

ARTICLE IV — ADJUDICATIVE HEARINGS. .. sevvrevrns... Cee
RULE 4.1 GENERAL PRINCIPLE........cc.vnen.. e

RULE 4.2 TIME AND NOTICE...... e e

{15310-0001/KA%933150.019] =1l-

15
16
17
18
18
18
19 .

20

11715193




RULE 4.2 OQUTSIDE COMMUNICATION AND TESTIMONY.......

'RULE 4.4  PARTICIPATION.......o.

LI B I

RULE 4.5 REASONS FOR DECISIONS........

ARTICLE V — GENERAL PRINCIPLES.....

RULE 5.1......
RULE 5.2......
RULE 5.3..0...

RULE 5.4......

-{15310-0001/KA933150.019)

L T I

] LUK L I )
LR LI TR N T Y R *
LA L N I B I R

—-ii-

-------------

L R I R I

- . . 1]
- ) LI N
LY LR N A L2
--------- + "
(3 LI L] .
L
-

22
24
25
27
27
27
28

28

11715193

¢




A

SPOKANE TRANSIj AUTHORITY

RULES OF PROCEDURE -

ARTICLE I - MEETINGS

" +

[

RULE 1.1 PLACE AND TIME OF REGULAR MEETINGS!

1.1.1 Regular meetings shall be held in _the - STA
Multipurpose Auditorium, 1229 West Boone Avenue, at 4:00 P.M.,
on a schedule' adopted by the Board of Directors prior to the

beginning of each year.?

RULE 1.2 ADJOURNED MEETINGS?

1.2.1 Any meeting may be adjourned to a place and time

fixed in the motion. Unless otherwise specified in the

TReW 42.30.070 (Cpen Meetings Act) requires the governing body of a
public agency to provide a time for holding regular meetings by forxmal
action. :

2This provision conforms with RCW 42.30.070,

3The term “adjourned"” has various meanings. Depending on context, ta
adjourn means to postpone and continue to a later time, or to close a
meeting. Although a technical explanation would involve the notion of a
"session" of the Board, for practical purposes, in the normal case when at
the end of a meeting the meeting is "adjourned, " it is concluded; whereas,
if a meeting is adjourned with unfinished business or’ adjourned without
having started, the meeting is continued. : :

For the most part, these Rules use the term in the sense contemplated
by the Open Meetings Act, particularly RCW 42.30.070, +that of a
continuation of a meeting. The term can refer to both the meeting which is
continued and the continuation of the meeting. Thua, if Monday's meeting
be adjourned to Tuesday, Tuesday's meeting is called . an "adjourned
meeting." .

_[15310-0001/KA933150,019] . . . . .. . O VA LT K]




motlon, the meetlng will be ad]ourned to the place and time

fixed for the next regular meetlng - . .

1.2.2 If a regulat meeting be adjourned to a place and

time specified, that adjourned meeting is a regular meeting.4

1.2,3 If Vat the 'tiﬁe fixed for the-‘beéinning of any
meeting, or at any time in the éoutse of “"the meeting, 1less
“than one member from each of the representative categories be
preeent,5 the' Chairperson, or; in his/her ebsence, the
Chairpersen Pro Tempore, or, in the absence. of both any
member shall declare the meeting adjourned to the next regular
meeting. If at the time fixed for the beglnnlng of any
meeting -any representative category is not present, the Clerk

or other person designated by the Clerk shall declare the

meeting adjourned to the next regular meeting.S®

1.274 “*The‘”Clerk, or other " person de51gnated by the
Clerk,  shall . post a written notice of adjournment
consplcuously on or near the main- door of the place of ‘any

meetlng Wthh has been adjourned. The potlce shall be posted

4

4Rew 42.30,090 8o provides, the apparent intent being to expressly
avoid the notice requirements. : : . '

SSTA Resolution No. 420-91,  Bylaws section 3.3, dated October 24,
1991, as amended.

6RCW 42.,30.0%0 purports to give the Clerk authority to declare such a

non-meeting adjourned to a certain time and place, The nmiembers of the
Board have the authority, as Rule 1.2.7 recites, to call a special meeting.

{15310-0001/KA933150.019] ~-2- | '1i115193




as.soQn as possible after adjournment and shall state the fact
of adjournment and the place and time of . the sadjourned

meeting.?

-1.2.5 'This rule does ﬁqt- prevent the .calling of a

. special meeting.

RULE 1.3 EPECIAL_MERTINGS

1.3.1 A special meeting may be.called by the Chairperson
or by a majority of the whole Board (i.e., five members).®
The Board may, by motlon durlng any meetlng, call a special

meetlng.

1.3.2 VNotice .of every special meeting shall be given in
writing to every Board member, to the Executive Director, to
the Clerk, and. to all local news media representatives who
have on file with the Clerk a request for- such notlces. The
notice shall be dellvered personally, by mall or otherw1se,

so as to be received at least 24 hours before the meetlng.

l A

"The notice shall state ‘the place and tlme of the meetlng, and
the business to be conducted The Board shall not make flnal

disposition of any matter not included in the notice.?

7phis rule derives from RCW 42.30,090.

8RCW 42.30.080 and STA Resolution No. 420-91, Bylaws Section 3.2(b),
dated October 24, 1931, as amended. o o

S

ORCW 42.30.080. N P BT S

", .115310-0001/1KA933150.019) c=3- RS TRk ]




-1.3.3 Notice of a special meeting to Board members by
the . Executive Director and the Clerk may be waived in writing

at anytime.

+

1.3.4 Notice of & special meeting may be shortened or

dispensed with in case of emergency involving likelihood of

.

injury orndamagé to persons or i:;roperty.10

- -

RULE 1.4 EXECUTIVE BESSIONS

1.4.1 The Board may conduct a special meeting or part of
a special or regular meeting in executive session, to the

exclusion of the public, in accordance with applicable law.!

LS

Before - the Board convenes in executive session, the
Chairperson shall declare, or the special meeting notice shall

state, the subject matter of the executive session with as

. much particularity as will not frustrate the purpose of the

executive session.

1.4.2 The Board shall determine which persons shall
attend each particular executive session and whether ninutes

shall be taken. If minutes are to be taken, they shall be

10cy 42.30.080.

Mphis language is a paraphrase and an interpretatiqn of RCW
42.30.110. RCH 42.30.140 makes the entire ‘Open Meetings Act -inapplicable

- to guasi-judicial matters, some collective bargaining proceedings, and.

certain licensing actions.

*, {15310-0001/KA933150.019] . —4- L cL 11415493

vy

7




. filed. .in the office of the' Executive ‘Director, to be made
- public at such time as the. need for confidentiality ceases to
exist.12 _ : _ N

RULE 1.5 MEETINGE NOT BSUBJECT TO OPEN PUBLIC MEETINGE -
‘ LAW .

1

1.5.1 - -Except for notice to the Board members, -the

Executive Director, and the Clerk, meetings may be held in

which the dpen, Public Meetings Law is not applicable.1?

ARTICLE II - CONDUCT OF BUSINESS

-RUOLE 2.1 AGENDA : . -

2.1.1 The efgeﬁda for all meetings shall be prepared by
the office of the Clerk in the manner and -format prescribed by

and in coordination with the Executive Director.

2.1.2 The agenda for each regular meeting shall be typed
and available to be picked up and distributed in such number
as the Executive Director may prescribe by 4:45 P.M. on the

. Wednesday preceding the meeting.

T2RcH 42.30.020 seems to allow executive sessions without minutes.
"There are not cases clearly indicating who has the burden of proving -what
went on in an executive session.

13RcW 42.30.140 makes the entire Open Meetings Act inapplicable to

_quasi-judicial matters, some collective bargaining proceedings, ‘and certain
licensing actions.

J[15310-0001/KA933150.015} ’ ~5- : 11715193




+2.1.3 ‘Items may be placed on a regular meeting agenda by

- - the Executive Dirdctor, General Counsel,- Clerk, or -any Board
member. The wording for the agenda and the agenda data sheet
shall be furnished by the person submitting the item. . Board
-members‘may not utilize administrgf}ve staff, othe; than that
of fhe E%ecutivé Director's office or General Counsel, for tﬁe
‘preparatioh of an item'fqr the agénda without direction by the

Board or authorization from the Executive Director.

—2.1.4 For good cause and under emergent circumstances,
an item may be added to the agenda after the deadline, and can

be acted upon if the Board finds such action necessary.

RULE 2.2 AGENDA DATA

2.2.1 Each person submitting an agenda -item shall
furnish'agenda data to the Clerk by such procedure and in such
“format’ as.prescribed by the Executive Director. Adenda data
:shall dncluder any 'report; file, record of previous
administrative- or legislative proceedihgs,» or a summary
thereof, and other documents necessary to adequately explain
the matter . to. .be actéa upon, dincluding a fiscal impact
‘statement. Additional décumentation which has not been

transmitted to the Board shall be identified, and the location

‘where such docuiients may be examined shall be indicated.

{15310-0001/KA933150.019] -6~ T s




-~2.2.2  Agenda data should indicate related actions and-
any . factors which bear upon the timing or notice of the

Beoard's action.

2.2.3 The Clerk . shall be responsible for making
sufficient copies of aggﬁda materials available to be picked
up and dlstrlbuted The Clerk may edit the agenda wordlng and

alter, add to, or delete agenda data to be transmitted.

2.2.4 It is the duty of each Board member to obtain and

" be familiar with all agenda data.

RULE 2.3 ORDER OF BUSINESS

2.3.1 Items shall be acted upon in the ordeér in which
they appear on the agenda, prov1ded items may be taken out of
order, comblned, or separated by majority vote of the Board,

or by declaration of the Chairperson.

2.3.2 Items on the agenda may be grouped under various
headings or sections, and entire sections may be read.,and
acted upon at one time unless the Board decides otherwise.

‘The agenda will generally be organized as follows:
(1) Call to Order and Roll call
(2) Approval of Minutes of Previous Meeting

(3) Recognitions and Presentations

= {15310-0001/KA933150.019] . =T . e 1115193 .




-(4). .

().

(6)
(7)
(8)

(9)

Board Action el : oL - : . (\

Board Information, Including :‘Committee Reports

- ¥

Staff Reports
New Business
Board Member Expressions

Executive Session - inserted where - and as

appropriate

(10) Date of Next Board meeting and/or Public Hearirg

(11} Adjournment

2.3.

N

The normal course of the ‘deliberative process,

particularly for those items which involve a hearing, shall

bg}

(1)

Identification of public hearing and purpose by the

Chairperson;

(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

staff report and questions to staff from Board;
Citizen input, with guestions from Board;
Cleosure of public hearing;

Action: motion and second; discussion by Board and

. recourse by citizens if recognized; and vote.

N

.. [1S310-0001/KA933150.019] . . =B- o 11/15/93




RULE .2.4 PROCEDURE FOR BOARD' ACTION

2;4.1 Every 1egislative act of the Board of a general or

permanenf,nature shall be by motion or resolution.

RULE 2.5 BS8PEAXING TO THE BOARD

2.5.1 No one shall speak without first being fecognized

for that purpose by the Chairperson.

2.5.2 Each person speaking shall identify
himself/herself by name, address, and, if .appropriate,

representative capacity.

2.5.3 Each speaker shall follow all written and verbal
instructions, so that verbal remarks are: electronicaily
recorded and documenté subnitted for the record are‘identified

“and marked by the Clerk.

2.5.4 In order that evidence and expreséioﬁs of opinion
_ be included in the record and. that decSrum:'befitting a
deliberative process be maintained, no modes of expfession not
provided -by these rules, :such as demonstrations, - banners,

applause, and the like, will be permitted.

2.5.5 (1) Following an assessment by the.Chairperson of
factors such as complexity'of-iésue, apparent number 6f people
indicating a wish to testify, representation by designated

spokespersons, etc., the Chairperson may, in the absence of

{15310-0001/KA933150.019) -9- ' - £ 11715/93




objection by the majority of tlie Board members ﬁresent, impose (‘ .

the following procedural time limitations;

'(e) There shall be time allotted for staff or Board

presentation, of background information, i@ any.

(b) The de51geated representatlve of the proponents
of the issue shall speak flrst and may 1nclude w;thln his
or her presentatlcn the testlmony of expert witnesses,
visual display, and any other reasonable methods of
presenting the case. Up to 30 minutes shall be granted
for the proponents' presentation. If there be  more than
one designated representative, they shall allocate the 30

minutes between or among themselves.

(c) Three minutes .shall be granted for any other
person who wishes to ‘speak generally on behalf of the

proponents' pOSltlonr

(d} The designated representative of the opponents
©0f the issue -shall speak folloWing the ‘presentation of
all of the proponents and may include within his or her
presentation the testimony of expert witnesses, visual
disﬁlays and aﬁy other.reasonabie methods of presenting
the case. The de51gnated representatlve(s) of the
opponents shall have the same time allotted as prov1ded

_ for the proponents.,

(153 10-0001/KA933150.019) -10- ‘ Tt nsea




-.=., .(e) Three minutes shall be granted for any other
person who wishes to speak generally on behalf of the

obponents' position.

(£) Up to 10 minutes: of rebuttal time shall be
granted to the designated representative for each . side,
the proponents speaking first, the opponents Aspeaking

second.

F (2) In the event : the ©party or  parties
areﬁresenting one side of . an . issue has & designated
representative -and the other side does 'not, the Chéifierson
shall publicly ask the unrepresented side "if they "“wish to
designate one or more persons to utilize the time allotted for
a designated representative. If ro-such desigpation is made,
éach'peréon wishing to speak on behalf of the unrepresented
.--side shall be granted three. minutes to present‘ his/her
position; and nec additional compenSatiﬁg‘time shall be allowed
dué_ te- the faect that . the side has no designaﬁed

- representative.

.(3) In the event there apgears.to’be more than
two_groups'wishiﬁg to advocdfé their distinct positions on a
spedific issue, the éhairpefson may grant the same procedural
and' tiﬁé allowanceé to each group or gréups, aé stated

- previously.

« [15310-0001/KA933150.019) . e N . . © 171593




(4} The time taken for staff.or Board members!
- gquestions+and responses thereto sghall be in-addition to the
time allotted for | any  individual -or - designated

representative's testimony.
' RULE :2.6 _THE CHAIRPEREON .

éts.ll Thel—Chairperson,. or in hié- of her absence or
incapaéity, the Chairpersén Pro Tempore, or in the'abéence or
incapacity of both, the Board member elected by the Board to
act as the presiding officer - (each of whom 1is: the
"Chairperson') shall preside over meetings of the Board, and
cause the business of the Board to be tranéacted in accordanée
with these rules. The Chairpersoh shall be mindful that the
meeting 1s being recorded and shall be responsible- for
- informing speakers that their remarks aré to be recorded. The
presiding officer may yield the Chairperson to a member of:the

.Board's choice to conduct a portion of a meeting,4

‘2.g.2 The Cﬁairperson.shall determine all Quesfigné of
procedure, subject to appeal, but shall liberally grant 1éave
to the Executive Director and General Counsel to speak to the
question. .A ruling of the-chairpérson can be apbealed, before

the ruling -is acted upon, by announcing an appeal followed by

Fan

.. Y4g7A Resolution No. 420~91, Bylaws Art. IV, dated October 24, 1991,
as amended. ’ :

“ [15310-0001/KA933150.019] S =12- . 11/15/93

N

‘ /”\.

N




a second. The Chairperson shall then state .the question in
terms of- upholding the r'uling and may state his/her reasons
for the:ruling. Then the member appealing has the floor to.

open debate on the appeal.’s

2.6.3 The Chairperson has the authority to recess any
meeting without appeal when noise, disturbance, indecorum, or
.othar cifcumstances warrant a rec.ess_ to. enable the Board to
conduét its meeting in ‘an appropriate manner., The Chairperson
'may dlrect the Executive Director to cause any person
dlsruptlng a meeting to be removed from the chambers or to

otherw:.se ellmlnate a source of dlsruptlon.‘s )

2.6.4 The Chairperson has authority to recess a meeting
upon the request of any Board membér. Recognizing that
f_atigﬁe’, discomfort, and tedium detract from the gquality of
participation in the deliberative process on the part of all
participants; the Chairperson is encouraged to:call or grant
requests for recesses at such freguency as dictated by the

time of day, temperature, and other factors.

15This xule basically follows Robert's, Robert's distinguishes
debatable and undebatable appeals based on subject - matter and
clrcumstances. ;

167he Open Meetings Act, RCW 42.30.050, recognizes the need for
procedures to deal with interruptions.

[15310-0001/KA933150.019] =-13- Cs. 1sms




- RULE:2.7 -VOTING. -

2.7_.-1 Except where-a super-é\ajorlty vote is requlred
{see Rule .1 6 =- Spec1al Actlons of the Board), and unless
otherwise provided herein, all motlons, to carry, must recelveA
the #ffirmative vote of a majority of*thé members of the Board
-'in attendance. ‘The failure of a motion neégative in forn does
not result in the passage -‘o‘f the - opposite side (positive in

form) motion.??

2.7,.2 The (?hairperson ‘shall vote on all matters. The
Chairperson shall vote when a ballot is used, and the

Chalrperson should be. called last on a roll call vote,18

2.7.3 Voting shall be by voice vote unless any member
requests, prior to action on the next item of business, a

different method. There shall be no voting by pProxy.

2.7.4 In all cases of vo:ci'ng by other than voibé vote,
the Chairperson shall “announce- the ‘names of those voting on
‘each _side of- tl}e question, and of those abstaining, and the
Clerk shall ent;af the same in the minutes. In cases of voice

)

vote, it shall be suff1c1ent for the Chalrperson to announce,

and the mlnutes to reflect, whether the motion carried or

757a Resolution No. 420-91, Bylaws Section 3.3, dated'OQtober 24,
1591, as amended. ) :

"8pobert's Rules of Order.

" 15310-0001/KA933150.019) , ~14- St finses




failed.. Regardless of method of voting, each Board member
~ shall have the right, before the next matter is considered; to
explaih--the reasons for his vote, and such request shall be

regarded as a matter of privilege,

ol

2.7.5 As a matter of, po_licy,' the Board shall endeavor to
have explanations or reasons presented du'rihg the discgssion
or. debate-prior to voting.!'® When the matter is one for -which
a report has been made containing an explanation Aof reasons
for recommended act".ion, or when .the motion includes a

. statc;ment of reasons, it will be presumed that those members
.'voting for the "adoption of the report, o‘r for the m-otién',
lagr"?‘ée with and adlopt the s-tat;d reasons in the ai:sence of
- further ‘expl:anation. | Whén the motion is to adopt a formal
written resolution, the m_otioh .includes any statement of

_findings, policy, and reasons. embodied within -the document,

unless the document be amnended.

RULE 2.8 AMENDMENT, BUSPENSION OF RULES

2.8.1 The rules ofiprocedure may be supplemented ox
amended by an affirmative vote of a majority of all members of
" the Board at any 'meeting of the Board called in accérdance

A

" with the law.

19pule 2.3.3,

; - [15310-0001/KA933150.019] . . =15- . 11/15/93




.2.8.2 .These xrules may be temporarily suspended for a

particulaxr matter by two-thirds of those present.20

RULE 2:9 COMMITTEES

2,9.1 Standing committees with speciﬁied functions may

be established by formal resolutlon of the Board. Spec1al

1

commlttees with speclfied functlons may be establlshed for a

<de51gnated term by the Chalrperson. Unless already determined

by thevBoard, such matters aé number, members, and time for

report of a committee shall be declared by the Chairperson

subﬂect to apbeal. The Chairperson shall appoint the Board

"

members of all standing " committees following his oxr her
* . .

eiection each year, subject toiapbroval by the Board.

2.9.2 By declaration of the Chairperson : (subject to

appeal) or by motion of the Board, a matter before the Board

may be refefred to a committée, provided no commlttee shall
investigate the facts nor shall any member or members of the

Board take independent action on, any pending or contemplated

~adjudicative matters,2! unless authorized by a majority of all

of the members of the Board.i?

20gpobert's Rules of Order.

2lcommittees create great difficulty under the fairness doctrine and
related judicial procedural requirements.

22phe Board has authorized Committee action with appropriate control.
See Resolution No. 216-84, adopted July 12, 1984.

"{15310-0001/KAR33150.019) -16—- - : Ce 111593

.‘/’\.




-.2.9.3 - A committee shall advise the Board that it is
ready to- report -by making such. announcement at the meetiné,
and by-filing the report with the Clerk for placement on an
agenda in coordination with the Executive Director as any
other agenda item. - - S . : »

P .- B “

5.9.4 A report of a committee recommending that the
Board'také specific action shall be in writing. Such writing
nay be substituted for fﬁll‘ réading. - Any committee member
'disagyeeing with any part of the committee's report. shall be
given an opportunity to expreSS‘Qis/her disagreement, orally
or in writing, prior to Board action on the-ﬁatter. If it be
moved and-secondéd that ;he minority'report be adopted, that
motion shall be voted on before a motion to . adopt the‘

_-committee report. -
" RULE 2.10 AUTHORITY TO SIGN RESOLUTIONS
2.10.1 All resolutions and other business of the Board
shall be signed by the Chairperson in his/her- representative
capacity, unless +the Board- directs differently. . :In the

Chairperson's absence, the Chairperson Pro . Tempore - or

presiding officer may sign.

*. . {15310-0001/KA933150.019) =17 | , S 1503 L




- -ARTICLE IIT - LEGISLATIVE HEARINGS

RULE 3.1 INITIATION OF HEARINGS
3.1.1 Hearings shall be initiated . by a request in
writing,. whether a- staff report, ra proposed resolution,. a
" petition, or other request from a citizen or by motion of the

Board.

3.1.2 When a deparﬁment or ofﬁiéer‘is.responsible for
processing. a petition,‘aépeal, or similar reguest pursuant to
a prescribed procedure, and a question arises whether a person
has complied fuily with the procedure as regards, for example,
form or time, the department or officer may, in.  lieu of
completely processing the matter, zreport the. question of
compliance to the Board, and the Board shall decide whether
any defect or irregularity shall bé waived and the matter

processed to hearing.

RULE 3.2 WITHDRAWAL AND RECONSIDERATION

3.2.1 After a public hearing has been -set, the matter
will remain on the agenda even though the regquesting party
asks that the matter be withdrawn. When the time for the
hearing arriveé, the Board shall hear comment from interested

persons as to whether the hearing should be held and determine

by majority vote whether to hear the matter.

* [15310-0001/KA933150.019] ) S -18-~ ] . : 11115193

N




:.3.2.2 A party to a hearing may request reconsideration
or rehearing by filing with the 01e£k -a’ written reqﬁest by
" noon of the. first Friday.folléwiné the deéision; statiﬁg in
detail' the reasons féf'the reqﬁest. The Board shall, at its

next regular meeting, decide. whether to grant the request,

- 'based solely-on the.written request without hearing or further f

argument. The motion to grant the request, if any, must bhe
made by a Board member who voted on the prevalling side. The-
prevailing side on a guestion is that side receiving the most

voteg, abstentions being counted as '"no" votes.

In case of a-tie vote, the side voting so as to maintain
the .status quo prevails. If reconsideration or rehearing be

.granted,. the Board shall set the date for further hearing.
RULE 3.3 FORMAL, RESOLUTIONS
3.3.1 If a hearing is to be held on a resolution without

another separate agenda item, the announcement of the pending

action will be the occasion for the hearing.

3.5.2 Unless impracticél 'in a given caée, formal
resolutions shali be fiied with the Clerk ahd copies éncluded
in the Board's packet bf fhe Friday preceding ;he meéting for
“which fhe iesolution is on the agenda. 1In any event, a formal

resolution must have been filed with the Clerk prior to the

meeting of which it is an agenda item. No formal resolution,

- {15310-0001/KA933150.019] c=19~ ] - . 11715793




- except: emergency measures, shall be passed until it has been

on file with the Clerk prior to the Board meeting.

3.3.3 If'a formal resolution has been filed, it shall be

sufficient reading to read its title or summary.

3.3.4 Amendment of the wording of a formal resolution on
file does ‘not require repetition of all filing and reading

procedures. The Board may elect to defer final 'action until

the amendatory language has been embodied in the document and

the document resubmitted, or to pass or adopt the measure as
amended, in which case the staff shall be responsible for

redrafting or changing the document for record purposes.

3.3.5 The Board shall not consider or adopt any
resolution, the subject matter of which is not directly

related to local affairs or municipal business.

ARTICLE IV - ADJUDICATIVE HEARINGS

RULE 4.1 -GENERAL, PRINCIPLE:

4.1.1 The Board recognizes the principle that hearings
on matters which directly affect the rights of an individual
or identifiable group of individuals must be preceded by

Teéasonable notice to those who'may be affected.?3

23This paragraph simply recites a constitutional principle of due
process. Cf., e.q., Glaspey & Sons v. Conrad, 83 Wn.2d 707 (1974).

- {15310-0001/KA933150.019] - =~20- ' © T 1115193

¢




+RULE.4.2 - TIME AND NOTICE .. . - . - =

4.2.1 WhafeAspecific:pravisian ia maaeﬁby statufe fbr
-the aime-of hearing or the time and manner of giving notice of
hearing, the‘.persoh submitting the agenda item ‘shall be
responsible for advising the Clerk concerning the time for
'heaaing and the tiﬁe,'.manner, aad recipients of potice.
Otherwiée;‘whéa the time of hearing is to. be set by the Board,
the Board shall set the date QO‘as to allow for reasonable
gnotiée by mail, unlesa for good cause an earlier hearing is

warranted.

4.2.2 Unless otherwise provided when a hearing involves
a specific plece of real estate (except in cases of a sale or
.purchase), notlce of the hearlng of the Board,shail be glven
vby regular mall to every record owner and taxpayer, as best as

can be reasonably ascertalned, of land adjacent to the subject

real estate.

4.2.3 Unless otherwise providadﬁ when the subject of a
hearing has been the specific subject of a previous public
hearing, notice of the hearing of the Board shall be given by
regular mail to each person who has requested notice.

4.2.4 If.a hearing be continued, there is no particular

requirement for giving notice of the continued hearing.

[15310-0001/KA933150.019) ' . w=21- ) - : 11115193




- .4.2.5 Notice of the meeting at which the.Board is to.set
-a date of. hearing need not be given. An 1nterested party may

_speak to the. matter of settlng ‘a hearlng date, elther in

person at the meetlng or by flling a letter with- the clerk.

prior to the meeting.’

;.2¢6 'Affer a hearing date has: been set and notice
thereof sent, a person. requesting a' change in the date shall
have the obligation.tO‘attempt toﬁachieve’agreement by all
interested parties. If the Board is satisfied fhat all
interested parties are in agreement and that changing the date
will not violate some provision of  law- or' prevent a&equate
preﬁaration of staff, fhen the Board may, by motion, change
the date of hearing. Otherwise, the Boardvﬁay'change a date

of hearing upon a showing of good cause.

4.2.7 A motlon on a hearlng 1tem should be made at the

close of the hearing If the motion is to continue the
hearlng to a later date, the 1nterested partles shall be glven

.

‘ opportunlty to speak to the issue of the contlnued date

RULE 4.3 OUTSIDE COMMUNICATION AND TESTIMONY

4.3.1 In recognition of the principle that all evidence

‘and argument in an adjudicative proceeding be presented during

“[15310-0001/KA933150,019) —22- o co 11115193

~




.- a: hearing. after notice,?4 .permission .will be given to a person

to speak or submit documents on a hearing item at a time other
than that. fixed for the hearing only when. necessary to a{roid
extreme hardship.. In such case whgn the person will be unasle
to apbear at the scheduled hearing, he/shé may be allowed to
speak Such person's verbal remarks shall be written into
minute form by the Clerk as qulckly as possible and be placed

with the other flle documents avallable for public :Lnspectlon.

4.3.2 No person shall be allowed to discuss any matter

pending - hearing with any member or members of the Board,

-except in the regular course of a Board meeting. * Each Board

" member shall vigorously . strive to -avoid any outside

communication from anyone in any form concerning a matter
pending hearing or decision.- If an outside contact cannot be
avoided, the Board member shall immediately make a note of the

coﬁtact and shall at the beginning of the Board's hearing on

the matter announce the fact of the contact, the identity of

‘the person, and the substance of the communication. If the

communication be in written form, the Board member shall as

2“'I‘hua principle . is' an aspect of , due, process and of fairness
doctrine. cf., e.g., Smith v. skagitt County, 75 ¥n. 2d 715 (1969), Barrie
v. Kitsap County, B4 Wn.2d 579 (1974). and even though adjudicative
proceedings are not covered by the Open Meetings Act, there is merit to the
opinion, expressed in RAGO 1971 No. 33, pp. 11-20, and elsewhere, that
naction" includes the receipt of evidence and persuvasion as well as=s
deliberation.

§15310-0001/KA933150.019] =23~ P . - 1115193




soon.as$ possible file it with the.Clerk, ‘and it shall- become

x

patt of the record at the hearing.:. ..

RULE 4.4 PARTICIPATION

4 A1 When the Board's dlscussx.on -and vote on a hearlng
-lltem is at a meet:t.ng other than the hearlng, 1t shall be the
"obllgatlon of every B‘oard member partlclpatlng in the action
to be familiar with the facts in order to reach an informed
independent judgment. When a member dls‘cuss:mg or voting on a
li}iatter was n;t present at the hearing, that member will have
.famlllarlzed hlmself/herself w1th the report and record using
.the Clerk's minutes of the hearlng Such famlllarlzatlon
‘Jshall ~ be ‘conflned to the official .flles and referenced
documents. A Board member shall not be brlefed by anyone

except in an open meeting.

t«

AT TR ‘Board member. shall dlsquallfy hlmself/herself
from participating in a hearing -whenever bias, interest,. or

other influences will prevert him/her from exercising fair-

minded, independent judgment on the facts and established

policy. Disqualifying influences include prejudgment of the
isstes that cannot be swayed by the facts in evidence, a
partiality or personal bias for or agaihst-a party, “and a
- persofial pecuniary- interest in the subject"matte'r. Examples

of dlsquallfylng blaS include a close, personal family or

business relatlonshlp w:Lth a’ party, ownershlp of- property the.

" [15310-0001/KA933150.019] -24- : T 1sms




value. of which might. be: affected by the decision, and a
business ox personal financial' situation <that might: be

affected .by.the decision.28

4.4.3 Should a Board member be aware of circumstances
which mlght appear to be dlsquallfylng, the member can either
dlsquallfy hlmself/herself or explaln the clrcumstances before
‘the hearing and let the rest of thé‘Board, by majority vote,
decide whether the member should participate. Shouid the
.Boardf be aware‘ of - circumstances which might appéari to
disqualify - a member, the Board may, by majority vote,
disqualify the meﬁber; The Board's discussion concernlng
'dlsquallflcatlon of a member may ‘occur in executive session.

:A disqualified member shall be absent from the chambers during

the hearing and during the discussion and voting.
RULE 4.5 REASONS FOR DECISIONS

4.5.1 Tha Board shall giveAreasons for-its decision on
.hearlng matters which. affect individual 11berty or property

rlqhts 26 :

257his Rule attempts to .coalesce: and summarizZe the principle  court
decisions defining fairness.

Z8any tribunal should explain why it decides a question. This
.requirement . has. been specifically imposed on city councils in land use
cases by Parkridge v, Seattle, 89 Wn.2d 454 (1978).

[15310-0001/KA933150.019] —~25~ ' S 118093




- 4.5.2- If a.motion be-negative in effect, that is, does
not chandge the status quo,. it sh,ali'be sufficient that the
motion ingludéra conclusion that the criteria -for making the

change have not been met.

ST - - ) - -

4 - e

£+ A.5.3. If a decision be affirmative in effect, that is,
changes -the status gquo, the final  motion shall state the
reaéons for the decision, at least summarizing. the ‘salient
facts found to exist ﬁwﬁiqh;-justiﬁy_ the decision, If the
matter be one for which a . .commission, committee, department,
or official has made findings or given reasons in its report
to the Board, the Board may, i1f it deems the findings . or
reasons are correct and adequate, adopt the report. If the
Board decides «contrary to the action of the ‘reporting
commission, department, or official, it shall either refute or
modify the material facts or reasons iA the r;port or make its

‘own’ findings—and reasons.

4.5.4 If a décision involves consideration or
application of an established policy contained in resolutjon
or other formally adopted policy, it shall be a sufficient

expression of policy to refer to such policy.

4.5.5 The findings and conclusions or other statement of
reasons may be included. in the oral motion or may be later
adopted by oral motion or in writing. Action -determined by a

.motion - shall not be final and effective until- findings and

[t

5 {15310-0001/KA933150.019] - =26- e - 11415793

C




conelusions or a statement of reasons have been agreed to and
made a part of the record.
. - : R . -y

4.5.6 The discussion after a_ deci_s‘ion. to agree upomn
f£indings and concluéions or statemenft of ‘;easons need }101:: be
~during a public hearing. The drafting of langluage ‘of- findings
and conclusions or reasons to be' adopted by the Board may be
delegated to an individual Board menber or committee, td""é
partyor his/her representative, ‘or to the staff,

ARTICLE V - GﬁNERAL PRINCIPLES

S i .. A s . i

RULE 5.1

.oF o %
v -

Matters of procedure, not otherwise provided for herein,
shall, insofar as practical, be determined by reference to
s AT - < .

~

Robertt!s Rules of Order.?

RULF 5.2

These rules shall be interpreted so as to promote the
two-fold purpose' of expediting the .transaction &f the biisiness
.0of the Authority:in an orderly- fashion and- providing for

appropriate forum for citizen participation in public affairs. .

2757n Resolution No, 420-91, " Bylawd ‘Section 3.4, dated October 24,
1991, as amended.

“ - [15310-0001/KA933150,019} < =27- : 1715793




RULE 5.3 RS : . : ' (i_ -

It is the constant duty of each Board member to maintain
respect . for each other, the staff, and the public, Likewise,.
the Board shall reguire correésponding .respect from all persons

who attend a meeting.
RULE 5.4

It is the purpose of the Board, in adopting these rules,
to provide & method for the conduct of its affairs, and it is
not intended that these rules affect the validity or legality

of any Board action.

-ADOPTED by the Authority on the [W{™ day of December,

1993. i : : ' -'{/ K

..

SPOKANE TRANSIT AUTHORITY

Lt Vi

Chairperson Lckwér Py o Tl

ATTEST:

Clerk of the Authority

[15310-0001/KA933150.019] ~28- ) ‘ 11£24/03




SPOKANE TRANSIT AUTHORITY

BOARD OPERATIONS COMMITTEE MEETING

March 8, 2023

AGENDA ITEM 8 : BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING AGENDA MARCH 16, 2023 —
CORRECTIONS AND/OR APPROVAL

REFERRAL COMMITTEE: n/a

SUBMITTED BY: E. Susan Meyer, Chief Executive Officer

SUMMARY: The Board of Directors meeting agenda for March 16, 2023, is attached for your
information, correction and/or approval.

RECOMMENDATION TO COMMITTEE: Corrections and/or approval.




Spokane Transit Authority
1230 West Boone Avenue
Spokane, WA 99201-2686
(509) 325-6000

BOARD MEETING

Thursday, March 16, 2023
1:30-3:00 PM
STA Boardroom
1230 West Boone Avenue, Spokane, WA

Optional Virtual Links:

Board Members: Board Member Link Guest Attendees: Guest Participant Link

Password (if asked): 2023
Call in Number: 1-408-418-9388 Event #: 2498 630 4424

A

mooOw>

F.

DRAFT AGENDA

Call to Order and Roll Call
Approve Board Agenda (Lori Kinnear)
Public Expressions

Board Action - Consent Agenda: 5 minutes

Minutes of the February 16, 2023, Board Meeting — Corrections/Approval

Approval of the February 2023 Vouchers (Monique Liard)

2023 Title VI Program Adoption (Resolution) (Karl Otterstrom)

July 2023 Service Revisions: Final Recommendation (Karl Otterstrom)

Cheney Line Corridor Improvements and West Plains Transit Center Retrofit (Bay 4): Award
of Contract (Karl Otterstrom)

100% Rideshare Subsidy for STA Employees (Brandon Rapez-Betty)

5. Board Report: 10 minutes

A.

City Line Implementation Update (Karl Otterstrom)

6. Board Discussion: 15 minutes

A.

Reduced Fare Categories (E. Susan Meyer)

7. Board Operations Committee: 5 minutes

A.

Chair Report (Lori Kinnear)

8. Planning & Development Committee: 5 minutes

A.

Chair Report (Al French)

9. Performance Monitoring & External Relations Committee: 10 minutes

A.

Chair Report (Pam Haley)
i. 2022 Unaudited Year-End Financial Report (Monique Liard)

10. CEO Report: 15 minutes


https://spokanetransit.webex.com/spokanetransit/onstage/g.php?MTID=ea83b65efad40d1befb33289d1ad59746
https://spokanetransit.webex.com/spokanetransit/onstage/g.php?MTID=ed4e882bd0e35c687f568b401cb705dc5

STA Board Meeting Agenda

Page 2
11. Board Information — no action or discussion
A. Committee Minutes
B. February 2023 Sales Tax Revenue (Monique Liard)
C. January 2023 Operating Indicators (Brandon Rapez-Betty)
D. December 2022 Financial Results Summary (Monique Liard)
E. 2024-2029 Transit Development Plan: Develop Mid-Range Planning Guidance (Karl Otterstrom)
F. Draft SRTC 2024-2025 Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP) (Karl Otterstrom)
G. 2022 State Audit Timeline (Monique Liard)
H. Division Street Bus Rapid Transit: Project Update (Kar/ Otterstrom)
I. 2022 Year-End Performance Measures (Brandon Rapez-Betty)
12. New Business: 5 minutes
13. Board Members' Expressions: 5 minutes

14. Executive Session (Etter McMahon): (none)

15. Adjourn
Cable 5 Broadcast Dates and Times of March 16, 2023, Board Meeting:

Saturday, March 18, 2023 4:00 p.m.

Monday, March 20, 2023 10:00 a.m.

Tuesday, March 21, 2023 8:00 p.m.

Next Committee Meetings (Via WebEx Virtual Conference) Wednesday:

Planning & Development April 5, 2023, 10:00 a.m.
Performance Monitoring & External Relations April 5, 2023, 1:30 p.m.
Board Operations April 12,2023, 1:30 p.m.

Next Board Meeting :

Thursday, April 20, 2023, 1:30 p.m. STA Boardroom, 1229 West Boone Avenue, Spokane, Washington (a
virtual joining option will be available)

Agendas of regular Committee and Board meetings are posted the Friday afternoon preceding each meeting on STA’s
website: www.spokanetransit.com. A video of the Board meeting may be viewed on the website the week after the
meeting. Discussions concerning matters to be brought to the Board are held in Committee meetings. The public is
welcome to attend and participate. Anyone wishing to address the Board of Directors on a specific subject at a Board
meeting may do so by submitting written comments to the STA Chair of the Board (1230 West Boone Avenue, Spokane,
WA 99201-2686) 24 hours prior to the Board meeting. Mail addressed to the Board of Directors will be distributed by
STA at its next meeting. Mail addressed to a named Board Member will be forwarded to the Board Member, unopened.
Spokane Transit assures nondiscrimination in accordance with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964. For more
information, see www.spokanetransit.com. Upon request, alternative formats of this information will be produced for
people who are disabled. The meeting facility is accessible for people using wheelchairs. For other accommodations,
please call 325-6094 (TTY Relay 711) at least forty-eight (48) hours in advance.



http://www.spokanetransit.com/
http://www.spokanetransit.com/

SPOKANE TRANSIT AUTHORITY

BOARD OPERATIONS COMMITTEE MEETING

March 8, 2023

AGENDA ITEM 9 : BOARD OPERATIONS COMMITTEE DRAFT APRIL 12, 2023, MEETING
AGENDA — INFORMATION

REFERRAL COMMITTEE: n/a

SUBMITTED BY: E. Susan Meyer, Chief Executive Officer

SUMMARY: The draft Board Operations Committee meeting agenda for April 12, 2023, is attached for
your information.

RECOMMENDATION TO COMMITTEE: For information and discussion.




Spokane Transit Authority
1230 West Boone Avenue
Spokane, WA 99201-2686
(509) 325-6000

BOARD OPERATIONS COMMITTEE MEETING

Wednesday, April 12, 2023
1:30 p.m.—=3:00 p.m.

Via Virtual Conference

Committee Members: Click here to join the meeting

General Public: Click here to join the meeting

Audio Conference: Call the number below and enter the access code.

8.

9.

+1-408-418-9388 | Access code: xxxx | Password: 2023

DRAFT AGENDA
Call to Order and Roll Call
Approve Committee Agenda (Kinnear)
Chair’s Comments (Kinnear) (5 minutes)

Committee Action/Discussion (5 minutes)

A. Minutes of the March 8, 2023, Committee Meeting — Corrections/Approval

Committee Chair Reports (10 minutes)
A. Al French, Planning & Development

B. Pamela Haley, Performance Monitoring & External Relations

Board Development (Meyer) (5 minutes)

Board of Directors Draft April 20, 2023, Meeting Agenda — Corrections/Approval (Meyer) (5 minutes)
Board Operations Committee Draft May 10, 2023, Meeting Agenda — Information (Meyer) (5 minutes)

CEO Report (15 minutes)

10. New Business

11. Adjourn

Next Committee Meeting: Wednesday, May 10, 2023, at 1:30 p.m. via WebEx

Agendas of regular Committee and Board meetings are posted the Friday afternoon preceding each meeting at the STA’s
website: www.spokanetransit.com. Discussions concerning matters to be brought to the Board are held in Committee
meetings. The public is welcome to attend and participate. Spokane Transit assures nondiscrimination in accordance with
Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and the Americans with Disabilities Act. For more information, see

www.spokanetransit.com. Upon request, alternative formats of this information will be produced for people who are
disabled. The meeting facility is accessible for people using wheelchairs. For other accommodations, please call 325-6094

(TTY Relay 711) at least forty-eight (48) hours in advance.


http://www.spokanetransit.com/
http://www.spokanetransit.com/

SPOKANE TRANSIT AUTHORITY

BOARD OPERATIONS COMMITTEE MEETING

March 8, 2023

acenpAmem 10 : CEO REPORT
REFERRAL COMMITTEE: n/a
SUBMITTED BY: E. Susan Meyer, Chief Executive Officer

SUMMARY: At this time, the CEO will have an opportunity to comment on various topics of interest
regarding Spokane Transit.

RECOMMENDATION TO COMMITTEE: Information only.




SPOKANE TRANSIT AUTHORITY

BOARD OPERATIONS COMMITTEE MEETING

March 8, 2023

AGenpaITEm 11 : NEW BUSINESS
REFERRAL COMMITTEE: n/a
SUBMITTED BY: n/a

SUMMARY: At this time, the Committee will have the opportunity to initiate discussion regarding new
business relating to Board Operations.

RECOMMENDATION TO COMMITTEE: Information only.




	02 Board Ops March Agenda
	02 Board Ops March Agenda Cover
	03 Board Ops Chair's Comments Cover
	04A Board Ops Draft February Minutes Cover
	04A Board Ops Draft February Minutes
	05Ai Cheney Line Temp Const Esmnts Cover
	06A PD Committee Chair Report Cover
	06A PD March Agenda
	06A PD Draft April Agenda
	06B PMER Committee Chair Report Cover
	06B PMER March Agenda
	06B PMER Draft April Agenda
	07A Draft Agenda Board Retreat
	07B Update Rules of Procedure
	07B Rules of Procedure 1993
	08 Board Draft March Agenda Cover
	08 Board Draft March Agenda
	09 Board Ops Draft April Agenda Cover
	09 Board Ops Draft April Agenda
	10 CEO Report Cover
	11 New Business Cover

